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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE 9

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS 5
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

172 Pembroke Road Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Taylor Caswell
Commissioner

November 29, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity to amend a
sole source contract (#1057086) with Families in Transition, Inc. (“FIT”) (VC #157730), Manchester, NH
for the delivery of Program Navigator services by extending the end date to September 30, 2018 from the end
date of February 15, 2018, and to expand the Reporting Requirements provision. No additional funding is
involved in this time extension, and all other terms and conditions of the contract remain unchanged. The
original contract was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 9, 2016, Item #75. 100%
Federal Funds (Federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Funds — Approved by
the State Workforce Innovation Board)

EXPLANATION

This request is to extend the completion date of the contract with FIT to provide a full-time Program
Navigator who serves as the liaison between the homeless community and the local NH Works offices. The
Navigator works with homeless and other target populations, providing ongoing, one-on-one assistance to
remove barriers to access to re-employment services and related support opportunities offered through NH
Works. The Program Navigator project takes advantage of the vast knowledge and expertise available
through FIT for effectively serving the homeless seeking new or advanced employment opportunities. The
contract is also being modified to expand and clarify Exhibit B Reporting Requirements Item 2 to specify
that the final report shall include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Program Navigator services
provided during the contract term.

This no-cost extension through September 30, 2018 is requested in order to provide additional time to carry
out the program objectives; the hiring process delayed implementation and program expenditures.

The Attorney General’s Office has approved this contract amendment as to form, substance and execution.

ly submitted,

Taylot Caswell
Commissioner



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT WITH RESPECT TO
PROGRAM NAVIGATOR SERVICES

The Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity and
Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT), Manchester, NH (VC# 157730) hereby mutually agree to
amend their contract (# 1057086) in the amount of $200,000 for Program Navigator Services,
which was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 9, 2016
(Item #75), with a completion date of February 15, 2018. This modification of an existing
agreement is hereby incorporated by reference to the existing agreement by the parties and
must be attached to said agreement, and shall accomplish the following:

1. Extend the contract end date to September 30, 2018 from February 15, 2018.

2. Clarify and expand Reporting Requirements ltem 2 as follows: “A final report shall be due
within 30 days of the end of this contract agreement, and shall include an assessment of the
effectiveness of the Program Navigator services provided during the contract term.”

3. All other terms and conditions of this contract shall remain in full force and effect as set forth
originally.

4. This modification is subject to approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

Families in Transition, Inc.

(0t a5, 2017

=

Date

Mayreen Beauregard, President

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF _#j}f5 hora«

On this the Zj day of éf?({ Z'Z ég[, 2017, before the undersigned ofticer, personally appeared
LBt een [ea wref trd , known to me or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name
1s subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged that she executed the same for the purposes

therein contained. In witness hereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal:

Notary Public
RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public

My Commission Expires: My Commission Expires October 16, 2018
De enof Business and Economic Affairs

PG 1136 [a0 17
Taylor Casw@Commissioner Date

Approved as to form, substance and execution:

LT 12/s)i2-

Office of the Attorney General Date
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MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT WITH RESPECT TO
PROGRAM NAVIGATOR SERVICES

Approved by Governor and Executive Council at the meeting on , Item #




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1 Dick Anagnost , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1am a duly elected Officer of Families in Transition
{Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on _October 25, 2017
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the _ 25 day of _October , 2017

(Date Contract Signed)
4. Maureen Beauregard is the duly elected President

(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency. -

(Signaturd?of the Elected Officer)
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __25  day of October, 2017 ,

By Dick Anagnost .

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
My Commission Expires October 16, 2018

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is
a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 13, 1994. [ further certify that
all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as far as this oftice is

concerned.

Business ID: 207982

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affined
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire.
this 25th day of April A.D. 2017.

Dor Lo

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State




N FAMIINT-01 MER
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oATE oo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONTACT Stephanie Lamere, CIC
D e o anorrill & Everett, Inc. PN, £xt): (603) 715-9740 [T 4o)(603) 225-7935
Concord, NH 03301 EdMkss. slamere@davistowle.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
insurer A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850

INSURED insurer B : Wesco Insurance Company
Families in Transition, Inc. INSURER C :
122 Market St INSURER D :
Manchester, NH 03101
INSURERE :
INSURERF : r
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE PRI POLICY NUMBER ) | (O o) uMITS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
cLams-mape [ X | ocour PHPK1591984 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 | BAMAGE IQRENTED o) s 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) 3 5'000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
| GEN' AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
pouor | X] 5EG Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | $ 3,000,000
OTHER: s
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY GOMDINEOSINGLELIMIT | 4 1,000,000
X | any auTO PHPK1591987 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 | BoDILY INJURY (Per person) | §
™| OWNED SCHEDULED _
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
PROPERTY DAMAGE
— RI'ECIJ:)S ONLY R‘S‘INO %IIE.Q (Per accident) $
$
A ___x_ UMBRELLA LIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 5,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUBS567749 01/01/2017 | 01/01/2018 AGGREGATE s
oep | X | retenmions 10,000 s 5,000,000
B |WORKERS COMPENSATION X ] PER ] OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER
Yy
Ay PROPRIETORPARTNEREXECUTVE | IWwca2a3601 01/01/2017 | 011012018 | | L, s coment . 1,000,000
(Mandatory in NF) - E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1,000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § ek

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be hed If more space is required)
***Workers Compensation***
3A State: NH
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH DHHS ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
129 Pleasant St
Concord, NH 03301
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE N
J W%.}mmu
ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT of RESOURCES and ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER & &cfﬁ—;}s

172 Pembroke Road  Concord, New Hampshire 03301-5791 S/Q/QOl b

January 25, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Resources and Economic Development, Office of Workforce Opportunity (DRED/OWQ), to
enter into a sole source contract for services with Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT) (VC#157730) 122 Market Street,
Manchester, NH in the amount of $200,000 for the delivery of Program Navigator services to assist homeless individuals
in accessing services funded through the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA ) effective March 1, 2016 or
upon Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is latest, through February 15, 2018. This project is 100%
federal funding (W!OA discretionary funds).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account in State FY2016 and State FY2017 and pending
budget approval for FY2018:

Office of Workforce Opportunity FY2018 FY2017 FY2018
03-35-35-351010-53360000-102-500731 - Contract for Program $50,000 $100,000 $50,000
Services

EXPLANATION

This is a sole source contract for a full-time FIT Program Navigator to work with homeless and other target populations
for the provision of one-on-one assistance for the purpose of removing barriers to access to re-employment services and
related support opportunities offered through the local NH Works offices. The project is for a two years, during which time
FIT would employ a full-time staff person to serve as a system “navigator” connecting homeless families in need of
employment services with the resources available. Through the provision of on-going, one-on-one guidance, working
with people outside of traditional hours as needed to promote and support successful interventions, and providing
emotional support to help break the cycle of failure often experienced by individuals and/or families in crisis, the Program
Navigator will serve as the liaison between the homeless community and NH Works.

Founded as a nonprofit organization in 1991, Families in Transition was formed in response to the growing number of
homeless individuals and families in Manchester and throughout the state of New Hampshire. Since its inception, FIT
has been committed to providing only the most innovative, comprehensive, and effective programming to help homeless
individuals and families reach beyond the cycle of homelessness and lead healthy and successful lives. FIT's unique
combination of quality, affordable housing, and comprehensive services has been recognized statewide and nationally
as one of the most effective ways to end homelessness. Remaining on the forefront of research and innovation in
homeless services, the Families in Transition model empowers homeless individuals and families to lead healthy, happy,
and productive lives.” Many of the families served by FIT face challenges obtaining and retaining quality jobs that pay a
living wage, offer benefits, and provide opportunities for advancement. Despite the fact that New Hampshire is a small
state, understanding and navigating the landscape of programs and service available remains a challenge for many
people who are under-educated and underemployed.



The Program Navigator project takes advantage of the vast knowledge and expertise available through FIT for effectively
serving the homeless seeking new or advanced employment opportunities. The FIT Program Navigator will work with
partner agency staff at the local NH Works offices to assist mutual customers in accessing employment opportunities
that lead to self-sufficiency. Based on the purpose, mission, and position of the FIT program, the Office of Workforce
Opportunity believes FIT is best suited to provide the unique set of skills and talents necessary for this project to
succeed. FIT is guided by its mission ‘to provide safe and affordable housing and comprehensive supportive services to
individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless, enabling them to gain self-sufficiency and
respect”. FIT owns over 200 units of save and affordable housing and provides housing and services to almost 600 men,
women and children each year. As one the state's largest homeless service provides, FIT has an extensive reach,
serving those who are homeless in southem, central and along the seacoast of New Hampshire. The agency serves all
segments of the homeless population including single women and men, single parent with children, intact families,
veterans, and chronically homeless.” FIT will work with partner agency staff to forge new relationships between
homeless and workforce development practitioners to the benefit of mutual customers. This contract is sole source
based FIT's experience, depth of services and current efforts to better connect the homeless community with existing
employment and training resources. In August of 2014 FIT published Addressing Structural and Individual Barriers to
Employment Readiness in New Hampshire - A Review of Barriers and Evidence-based Approaches to Enhance
Employment Outcomes. The report identifies barriers, needs and recommendations for strategies to improve
coordination with existing employment services, including hiring a Program Navigator. Funding to support this project
was approved by the Governor upon recommendation of the State Workforce Innovation Board, in support of the request
for financial assistance to pilot a Program Navigator to provide the services identified in this proposal.

The Attorney General's Office has reviewed and approved this contract as to form, substance and execution.
Respectfully submitted,
®

AN

Jeffrey J. Rose
Commissioner

1 ..
FIT Qur Mission hitp::/www fitnh.org/aobut-usimission/
* Addressing Structural and Individual Barriers to Employment Readiness n New Hampshire - A Review of Barriers and Evidence-based Approaches to Enhance Employment Outcomes

(O]



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/26/15)

]

| Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
I . N I . . . ~ . .

Exzeutive Council tor approval. Any information that is private, confidenual or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
NH Dept. of Resources & Economic Development
Office of Workforce Opportunity

1.2 State Agency Address
172 Pembroke Road
Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

Families tn Transition

122 Market Street, Manchester, NH 03101

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number

Number

603-641-9441 010-035-5336-102-500731

1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation

February 13, 2018 $200,000

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Jacqueline Heuser, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-7275

1.11 Contractor Signature

r\(\/"} (A 2240 @L’Llu ngﬂ/‘f/

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Maureen A. Besuregard, President

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of NH , County of

On 1/8/16

Hillsborough

, before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily

proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity

indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

(Seal] LQJA )d PM\J

AUTH A. SYREX, Notary Pubiic
My Commissicn Expires October 15, 2018

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Jisticgfof the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin Assit.

anarv Public

l.14 Sta

R e

[

Date: Z/ z/ /,é

.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

1e§F co ) B

\M» fam Syfpcer

1.16

By: T\\F\

Approval by the N.H. Department of Administrafion, Division of Personnél /zf applzcab/e)

Director, On:

By: 7}'\ )
- dﬁfv/%z/_“

Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

2/8/1

1.18

By:

Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

On:

Page | of 4



L EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTORSERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshirs acting
through the ageney dentitied in block 11 0 Saate™s. enzages
sonteyctor identitied inblock 13 (~Contractar”™y to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform. the work or sale of zoods. or
both, 1denntied and mwore particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which ts incorporated herain by referznce

Services’

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Novwithstanding any provision of this Agrzement o the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, it
applicable. this Azreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder. shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Azreement as indicated in
block 1.13, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Azreement shall become etfective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 (~Etfective Date™).

3.2 [ the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor. including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services pertormed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Norwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary. all obligations of the State hereunder, including.
without himitation, the continuance ot payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of tunds. and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. [n the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriaied finds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment unttl such funds become available. if ever, and shail
have the right to teruminate this Agreement immediatelv upon
gtving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer tunds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are tdentitied and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

3.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses. of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

33 The State rasert ey the right ro ottt trom any amoun:s
otherwise payabic to the Contractor under this A grzement
those hguidated amounts raquired or permitted by N H RS A
80:7 through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law

3 4 Norwithstanding any provision in this Azreement to the
contrary. and norsithstanding unexpected circunstances.
no event shall the total of all pavments authonized. or acually
made hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set torth m block
1.3

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

A.1 [a connection with the performance ot the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statuees, laws. rezulations.
and orders of tederal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Coatractor,
including, but not limited to. civil rights and 2qual opportunity
laws. This may include the requirsment to utilize auxiliary
alds and services to easure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. [n addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discAminate against employees or applicants for
emplovment because of race, color, religion, creed, age. sex.
handicap. sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
aftirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 [f this Agreement is tunded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders.
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under ail applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months atter the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire.
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person. firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined ettort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Page 2 ot 4 Ca

Contractor [nitials {1} &4
Date_1/8/15



Ngreement. This provision shall survive terminanen ot this
Azrzement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer speciiied in block 1.9, or his or
her successor. shall be the State’s representative. [nthe event
ot any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement.
the Contracting Ofticer’s decision shall be tinal for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

3.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitmute an event of detault hereunder
("Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services saustacrortly or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure 1o submit any report requirad hereunder; and or
$.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Detault, the State
may take any one, or more. or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specitying the Event
ot Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days trom the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifving the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period trom the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event ot Detault
shall never be paid 1o the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, compulter programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers. and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received trom
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior wnitten approval of the State.
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10, TERMINATION, [n the svent of an carly rermination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shali debiver o the Contracung
Officer. not later than fifteen (13) days after the date of
termination. a report {“Termination Report”™) describing in
detarl all Services pertermed. and the contract price carned. o
and including the date of termination. The form. subject
matter, centent, and number of copies of the Termunation
Rezport shall be identical to those of any Final Report
Jescribed in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and s neither an agent nor
an zmployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, emplovees, agents or members shall have authority 1o
bind the State or receive any benetits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transter any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend.
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its otficers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person. on account of,
based or resulting trom, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State. which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.,

4.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph [4.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance. and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

Contractor [nitials 47

Date 1 18#1—6—*



P43 The Contrvewer Shalb faensh eothe Conracnpng O00 oy
wentified m block 19 or his or her suceessor. a certificat2is)
ofinsurance for all msurance reguired under this Azreement.
Conrracror shall also furnish 1o the Contractinz Otticer
wdentinied in block Ly or s or her suceessor, certificatets) of
msuranee for all renewaltst of insurance e2qyuirad under this
Ausreement no later than thirty (30) dawvs prior to the expiration
date ot zach ot the insurance policies. The cernticatets) of
msurance and any renewals thereot shall be artached and arz
tncorporated herein by relerence. Each ceruticarers) ot
msurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer
provide the Contracting Otficer identified in block 1.9, or hus
or her successor. no less than thirty (30) davs prior written
notice of cancellation or moditication of the policy.

15. WORKERS COMPENSATION,

3.1 By sizniny this agreement, the Contractor agrees.
certities and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chaprer 281-A
1 Workers' Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Coatractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, pavment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shail
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her succeassor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 28!-A and any
applicable renewal(s) therzof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or tor any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or emplovee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

[6. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event ot Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party herzto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certitied mail. postage prepaid, in 2 United
States Post Otfice addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

sachapptosal sorngared under e soumstanes pursaant ts
state lav. rule or policy

19 CONSTRUCTION OF AGREENMENT AND TERMS.
s Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
lases of the State 0 New Hampshire. and s bindinz upon and
inurzs to the benetit of the parties and their respective
successors and assizns, The sording used in ths AZreement
is the wording chosen by the parties 1 express their mutual
meent, and no rule of construction shall be applied azamst or
w favor of any party

20, THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benetit any third parties and this Agrzement shatl notbe
censtrued o conter any such benetit.

2{. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arz for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held o 2xplain, modify, amplify ot
aid in the interpratation, construction or meaniag of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22, SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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Families in Transition (FIT) 122 Markat Straet, Manchestar, NH 33101

EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF WORK

TERM & EXTENSION

This cost reimbursement agreement for services between Families in Transition (FIT) and NH
Department of Resources & Economic Development, Ottice of Workforce Opportunity (OWO)
will be for a term beginning February 13, 2016 or upon Governor and Council approval,
whichever comes later, and terminating on February 15, 2018, Total payments under this
agreement shall not exceed $200,000.00 and shall be expended consistent with the terms
outlined in Exhibit B of this agreement. These funds are made available through Workforce
[nnovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Governor's Discretionary funds to support a service
Navigator statf position available to work with the homeless and others with significant barriers
to employment, to ensure continuity and timely access to re-employment services otfered
through the NH Works network of partner agencies, and other community resources as deemed
appropriate.

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

Families in Transition (FIT) shall hire a full-time Program Navigator to work with homeless and
other target populations providing one-on-one assistance for the purpose ot removing real and.or
perceived barriers to accessing needed re-employment and related support services through the
local NH Works office(s).

The Program Navigator shall:
e Serve as customer advocate, supporting individuals through the re-employment process.

o Function as a “team player” within the NH Works framework, promote the program
services offered through the NH Works partner agencies, and facilitate positive
interactions at every level ot service.

e Work full-time, with an assigned work schedule that is sufficiently flexible to
accommodate individual customer need for assistance during “off hours™ as well as
during the standard NH Works oftice work hours, i.e., 8:00 am to 4:30 pm: allowing for

Page | of 2
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Famihas in Transition (~1T) 122 Markar Straer, Manchestar, NH G31L01

greater aceess to resources and consistency of services tor those individuals not readily
available during ottice hours.

o Participate as a tull contributing member on the local NH Works one-stop team.
o Coordinate all on-site (1.¢., NH Works) activities with the local NH Works manager.

e Participate 1n training and meetings at the request of the NH Works Interagency
Director’s Group (IDG) (e.g., each partner agency will arrange for the Navigator to
participate in program specific training; staft training opportunities oftered through the
NH Works Professional Development Team (PDT), etc.)

e Maintain a log of customers served, the type of services provided and report progress and
outcomes for each person served.

o Submit individual outcome reports to the appropriate NH Works Employment Counselor;
at 2 minimum upon completion of services.

e Submit monthly service reports to the IDG, and attend an [DG meeting quarterly and’or
as requested to provide an update on activities, outcomes and suggestions for
improvement.

e Along with the Director of FIT, attend a State Board meeting in December 2016 to
present data on year one progress and, it applicable recommend continued services for
the additional year.

The Program Navigator shall not:

e Serve as an agent tor system change. Recommendations for improved services may be
reviewed with the [DG at scheduled meetings, but shall not be the focus responsibility of
the Navigator.

—
to
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Families in Transition (FIT) 122 Markat Streer, Manchestar, NH N3101

EXHIBIT B

PRICE LIMITATION

e This contract is funded with WIOA Discretionary Funds (CDFA =[7.258; 17.273;
17.259) as recommend by the State Worktorce Innovation Board and approved by
the Governor of New Hampshire.

o Total agreement not to exceed: $200,000.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT

. For expenses related to the Program Navigator position from February 15, 2016
or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever comes later. through February
15, 2018, Family in Transition (FIT) shall be paid up to Two Hundred Thousand
Dollars and 00/ 100 ($§200.,000.00).

2. Related expenses shall be limited to salary, fringe benefits, reimbursement for in-
state travel, and cell phone costs. All expenses shall be billed consistent with the
policies and procedures in place for other employees of FIT. FIT shall be
responstble tor all other costs (e.g. indirect costs, supplies, audit fees, etc.)

3. Upon presentation of an invoice for such services and related expenses, which

shall be billed monthly and submitted electronically, the amount of the invoice
shall be payable to FIT in accordance with the State 30 day minimum payment
schedule.

[nvoices shall be sent to:  Office of Workforce Opportunity
Attn; Juli Pelletier Y
172 Pembroke Rd '
Concord, NH 03302-1856
Julianne.Pelletiercicdred.nh.gov

Payment shall be made to:  Families in Transition
Attn: Maureen Beauregard
122 Market Street
Manchester, NH 03101

4. Invoices shall be signed by an authorized representative of FIT.

5. Supporting documentation, as mutually agreed to by FIT and OWO, shall be
attached to the invoice to allow OWO to comprehend and track the origins of the
amount invoiced.

A
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Famiies in Transition {(FIT) 122 Markar Stra22f, Manchestar, N 03101

6. Pavments may he withheld pending receipt ot required deliverables reports as
defined in Exhibit A ot this agreement,

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

L. FIT shall submit written monthly reports to the Interagency Directors Group.

20 A final report shall be due within 30 days of the end of this contract agreement.

N
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NH Department of Resources & Economic Development
Office of Workforce Opportunity (OWO)

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

As a condion of this cortract agreement FIT agraes 1o

o Allow OWO staff to conduct on-site program and fiscal monitoring annually to comply with
federal prozram managzment requirements, including access to customer files as necessary
to verify the delivery of services.

o Maintain custormer confidentiality consistent with OWO policy and procedures. The
Program Navigator must sign a NH Worlks confidentiality form to be maintained in the
persongel file at FIT.

o Comply with the provisions of the following as appiicable:

23 CPR Part 37 Mondiscrimination and tqual Opportunity Requirements

OMB 2 CFR 2CC and CHAPTER XXiX—US DOL PART 29C0 Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Prefit Organization:
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. | 0 |-336, 104 Stat. 327,42 U.S.C 12101-
12213 and 47 U.S.C 225 and 611)

Hatch Act {5 U.S.C. Subsection 1501 -1508 and 7324-7328) which limits the political activities of
amployeas whose grincipal employment activities are furded in whole or in part with Federal
funds

Comprehensive Alcohal Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of
1970 as amended (P.L.91-616)

Section 504 of the Rahabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794, 29 CFR Part 32)
Title 1X of the Education Amendments Act of 1372, as amended (20 U.S.C. Subsection 1681-
1683, and 1685 and 1685)

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 101-61 07) Title V! of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352/ 29 CFR Part 31)

Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1372 (P.L. 92-255)as amended

Davis-8acon Act (40 U.S.C. Subsection 276a to 275a-7) regarding labor standards for federally
assisted construction sub- agreements

Copeland Act {40 U.S.C. Subsection 275C and 18 U.S.C. Subsection 874} regarding labor
standards for federally assistad construction sub-agreements

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. Subsections 327-333) regarding labor
standards for federally assisted construction sub-agreements

Occupational Safety and Health Act, including Stats and Federal law which are applicable to
similarly employed employees of the same employer who are rot participants in programs
under WIA/WIOA.

Implementation of the Priority of Service provisions of the Jabs For Veterans Act {73 fed. Reg.

78132)
W
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State of Nefw Hampshive

Lepartment of State
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[, Withiam M. Gardner, Szeretary of State o7 the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
ertify that FAMILIES IN TRANSITION is a New Humpshire nonprofit corporation

formed May 13, 1994, [ further centiiy thavit is in good standing us far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fres required by law,

[n TESTIMONY WHEREOF, [ herato
set my hand and cause to be affixad

the Seal of the State of Naw Hampshire,
this 16™ day of April, A.D. 2013

ey Bk -

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State
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DATE (MMDD/YYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 11712016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED A3 A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to

the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER e
KOS, e (503) 225,001 R v 609) 2257935
Concord, NH 03301 | AbbRESs: . R
ﬁ INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
) ) 'insurer a :Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED L insurer 8 :Wesco Insurance Company
Families in Transition, Inc. LINSURERC: R
122 Market St ! INSURER D : L
Manchester, NH 03101 ! INSURERE ;
| INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED.

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR QTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED QR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL'SUBR ™7~ POLICY EFF POLICY EXP -
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD_WVD POLICY NUMBER (MMIDD/V‘chY) (MM/DDIYYYY) LIMITS
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY , EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
 camswaoe X ocour PHPK1437332 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 DAMRETORENTED o s 100,000
I MED EXP (Any one persan) 3 5.009
e PERSONAL 3 AOY INJURY 3 1,000,000
_GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES >ER: GENERAL AGGRESATE 3 3,000,000
___eoucy &G X wec PROOUCTS - COMPIOP AGG 3 3,000,000
OTHER: 3
 AUTOMOBILE LABILITY ‘ Oy NGLE LIMIT 1,000,000
A X anyauto PHPK1437332 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 : BODILY INJURY (Par persan) - 3
77T ALL OWNED T SCHECULED ;
 AUTOS L AuTos BOOILY INJURY (Per accident) 3
. NGN-CWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE :
... HIRED AUTOS AUTOS {Par accident)
3
X UMBRELLALIAB . OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE 3 5,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB526626 01/01/2016 - 01/01/2017 AGGREGATE 3
oep X | RETENTIONS 10,000 ' ; 3 5,000,000
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER TOTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY v STATUTE LER
B ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE i WWC3175845 01/01/2016 01/01/2017 £ EACH ACCIDENT 3 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUBED? N NiA v
(Mandatory in NH} — E L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 3 1,000,000
it yes, descrbe undar )
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below | EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 3 1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is requirad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of New Hampshire, Dept of Resources and Economic

Development

Office of Workforce Opportunity

172 Pembroke Rd
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Shpharslug@rnins

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Dick Apagnost , do hereby certify that:

1. 1'am a duly elected Officer of Families in Transition

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly neid on January 8, 2016

RESOLVED: That the President

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or medifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgeing resoiutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 8 day of January , 2018
4. Maureen Beaureqard is the duly elected President

Mams of Tonratt Sty T of Larimact 3ignaty
of the Agency.

O G
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of _Hillsborough

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 8 day of _January , 2016

By __Dick Anagnost

e v - P e
vame of Zesrsd Gifosr orme sransy 0

\%Q//A/ (//yza//

Moy P _ondsusdna of tha Paate

18

Commission Expires:

RUUTH A. SYREK, Notary Pubiic
My Commussion Expirag Derober 15, 2018

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seat

July 1, 2005
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DATE:

SUBIZCT: G IOA Set-Aside Diserznonary Fund - fund Usazz Recommendations

The Workivres lanovation and Oprorturity Act {WION) DrOgAUM 333 asid: *sc* t*omrv tunding tor
special pr')"""" calevant ro workizree aad labor markat condizons that exist intae S As of Decerber

[

~

£9, 2005 qtotal of $412,4G3.00 s avallable for use consistent with the paramerars set tonh by US DOL.
These funds ars a7ailabis for use through June 30, 2013

Consistent witll stablished procedurss, the Otfice of Workioree Opportuntty start brings forward funding
tdeas through the NH Works committae structurs. Proposed projact idcas ars raviewsd at the Board levai,
Projects approvad ror consideration by the Board ars then submittad o the Governor a5 recommendations
for final apoproval.

Projects approvad last year include funding w support WIOA Stats Plan development and program
evaluation, and 1ccess to business sarvices case manzgement svsiem for NH Works business stafl fora

otal o 3131.993.00

w

By vowe of «": State Workforce nvestment Board on December 150 2013, twa new projzeis e
recommended for your approval:

“'

P

o 590.0C0 tn discrationary furding 0 cover the cost of individual taining accounts ([TAs) for
oecupational skills training for out-of-school youth. If approved, discrstionary funds would cover
the cost of rraining for approximately 15 out-of-school youth. WIOA encourages enrollmen: of
out-ot-school youth in skills training opgortunities that will lead to occupation specific
cradentialing. The youth program budget managed by NH DOE does not have sufficient fundsto
COvEr these costs.

o 52100,000 in discretionary funding to support a new initiatve with the Manchestar based non-
profit organization, Families in Transition (FIT). Collectively, local service providers have
identified a need for ongoing specialized support for individuals with multiple barriers to
smploynent to help them access re-employment services and corresponding support resources.
FIT, partnering with Goodwill [ndustries and other employment entities, proposes to pilot a
program “navigator” approach to address this aeed. A Navigator will work one-on-one with
homeless individuals to connect them with the services offered through the NH Works centers. [f
approvad this wouid be a two year sole source conrract. The project would employ one tull-time
statf person for 24 months in Manchester, NH.  Yzartwo funding would be contingent on

The Offics of Workiarzz Opoortunity. DRED 13 1 spansac 2f e NH Works svatem, 1 3roud membar of Amernias
Wosrkore s Meowvark aad 30 2qus! spoortumity 2mployararogonn, Aucihiary 1ids and sarvices arz avulahie Ipoe

rrguest o andividuals with disahiies

o
TODATCTESS 2007 MM HANGT13.29n4 (Z ;) rer ;o1 Jdper




[t 15 anniziparad that partner azenctes will continue to

cessial outcomes at the :nd of one ye
project v the 2nd o the second year,

IUCTSSST
work togather to securs

zar
Flya

funds o sustain the

d WO A Diserztionary Fuads for the purposes identiffiad

15092
[f you agrze win this reguest, please sign and daiz2 below and return this memorandum to the Otfice of
Worktoree Opporturity, Thank vou or vour considerazion.

"7 :’ T /\)Tf? 1/ / (-1 F -] S'/
= Date

Governor M wgaret Wood Hassan
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consoclidated financial statements of Families in Transition, inc.
and Subsidiaries (the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
of December 31, 2014 and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consaclidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit afso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Organization as of December 31, 2014, and the
consolidated changes in its net assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.



Board of Directors
Families in Transition, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Page 2

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2013 consolidated financial statements and. in our
report dated March 28, 2014, expressed an unmedified opinion on those audited consolidated financial
statements. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2013, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited consolidated
financial statements from which it has been derived, adjusted as described in the following paragraph.

Adjustment to Prior Period Summarized Comparative Information

As disclosed in Note 11, the Organization has restated its beginning 2013 consolidated net assets to
include a previously unrecognized contribution of property to Housing Benefits, inc.'s Dover Housing
Project.

As part of our audit of the 2014 consolidated financial statements, we audited the adjustment described
in Note 11 that was applied to restate beginning 2013 consolidated net assets. In our opinion, such
adjustment is appropriate and has been properly applied.

Other Matter
Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary information, which consists of the consolidating
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2014, and the related consolidating statements of
activities and functiona!l expenses for the year then ended, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis, rather than to present the financial position and changes in net assets of the individual
entities, and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Berry Duvnn MeVel f Furket, Lol

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 30, 2015



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2014
{(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

ASSETS
Restated
2014 2013
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 996,035 3 732.210
Funds held as fiscal agent 75,737 96.380
Accounts receivable 39,983 43 901
Grants receivable 282,810 235517
Prepaid expenses 54,587 65,440
Reserve cash designated for properties 662,613 646,522
Due from related parties 8,210 9735
Other current assets 43,779 40.058
Total current assets 2,163,754 1,869.763
Replacement reserves 338,563 299,029
Investments 10,661 8,537
Investment in related entity 1,000 1,000
Property and equipment, net 26,111,906 24,356,363
Development in process 260,947 1.130.431
Other assets, net 145,356 158,624
Total assets $..29.032.187 S__27.823747
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $ 187,323 § 258,051
Accounts payable 183,579 136,696
Accrued expenses 159,806 102,519
Funds held as fiscal agent 75,737 96,380
Deferred revenue 32,581 6,825
Due to related entity 2,371 -
Security deposits 43,784 40,138
Total current liabilities 685,181 640,609
Long-term debt, less current portion 9,938,952 9681352
Total liabilities 10,624.133 10,321,961
Net assets
Unrestricted - controlling interest 12,197,286 11,014,933
Unrestricted - noncontroliing interest 5,691,054 6,114,912
Total unrestricted 17,888,340 17.129,845
Temporarily restricted 519,714 371,941
Total net assets 18,408,054 17.501,786
Total liabilities and net assets $,..29032187 $__ 273823747

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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FAMILIES {N TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

Program Management 2014 2013
Activities Fundraising  and General Total Total
Salaries and benefits
Salaries and wages $ 1743218 3 233064 S 170914 $ 2147196 $ 20048385
Temporary labor 7.202 - - 7,202 38,656
Employee benefits 239,186 28.093 20,602 287,891 225247
Payroll taxes 138.230 18 922 13.878 171,078 174,159
Total salaries and benefits 2,127 896 280.079 205,392 2,613,367 2.442 947
Expenses

Advertising 29,308 - 332 29,640 26.407
Amortization 13,268 - - 13,268 13,769
Application and permit fees 2,400 - - 2,400 2,850
Bad debts 15,341 - - 15,341 10,131
Bank charges 10.878 - 3,739 14,617 16,723
Consultants 30,333 2.250 - 32,583 41,606
Depreciation 849,077 21,192 15,541 885,810 849,064
Events 4,194 42725 - 46,919 35,345
General insurance 119,390 8.043 5899 133,332 120.529
Interest expense 179,152 - - 179,152 177,265
Management fees 35,189 - - 35,189 4,511
Meals and entertainment 2,968 590 432 3,990 3,973
Membership dues 5172 932 683 6,787 7.324
Office supplies 100,961 16.447 12,061 129,469 117,049
Participant expenses 43,958 - - 43,958 44 929
Postage 6,073 1.112 816 8,001 11,547
Printing 12,913 2,365 1,735 17,013 30,484
Professional fees 108,923 8.520 6,248 123,691 96,608
Rental subsidies 251,347 - - 251,347 261,606
Repairs and maintenance 385,885 10.674 7,828 404,387 382,228
Staff development 8,792 1,782 1,307 11,881 11,776
Taxes 263,719 - - 263,719 245,422
Technology support 44 546 8.617 6,319 59,482 58,676
Telephone 52,510 7.817 5,732 66,059 64,532
Travel 43,862 7.450 5463 56,775 52,358
Utilities 403,942 4462 3.272 411,676 374,781
VISTA program 264,623 - - 264,623 345,979
Workers' compensation 58173 7.941 5824 71,938 61,040
Total expenses $_5474793 $ 432998 $ 288623 $_6,196414 $_5911459

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2013)

2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 906,301 S 799.053
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depraciation and amortization 899,078 862.833
Contribution of property for long-term purposes (687,760) -
Grants revenue for long-term purposes - (1.184.2C6)
Forgtveness of debt (131,267) (131.267)
Urrealized gains on investments (1,064) (3.882)
L.oss on asset disposal 3,653 24,296
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts receivable 3,918 (21.025)
Grants receivable (53,293) (115.204)
Prepaid expenses 10,853 9,620
Due from related parties 1,525 (1.623)
Other current assets (3,721) (11,801)
Increase (decrease) In:
Accounts payable 46,383 44764
Accrued expenses 57,287 (1,573)
Deferred revenue 25,756 3,158
Due to related party 2,371 -
Security deposits 3,646 11888
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,084,166 285036
Cash flows from investing activities
Net withdrawals from (deposits to} reserve accounts 14,242 (11,387)
Purchases of investments (1,060) -
Investment in development in process (550,717) (1,104,891)
Acquisition of property and equipment {113,629) (132,294)
Net cash used by investing activities (651,164) (1,248.572)
Cash flows from financing activities
Grants received for long-term purposes - 1,184,206
Partner distributions (33) -
Proceeds from borrowing long-term debt - 45,701
Payments of long-term debt (169,144) (164,230)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities (169,177) 1.065677
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 263,825 102,141
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 732,210 £30,069
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 996,035 $___ 732210
Supplemental disclosure
Acquisition of property and equipment through long-term borrowings $ 430000 § -
Acquisition of development in process thraugh long-term borrowings $ 63283 % '
Property and equipment transferred from development in process $____1483484 § -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Organization

Families in Transition, Inc. (FIT or the Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit, incorporated on
May 13, 1994, to provide housing and comprehensive social services to individuais and families who
are homeless or at risk of becoming homeless in certain areas of southern New Hampshire, including
Manchester, Concord and Dover

The Organization directly owns and operates housing programs in facilities located on Amherst Street,
Spruce Street and Douglas Street in Manchester, New Hampshire. Additional housing facilities are
owned and operated by several limited partnerships of which the Organization is the sole general
partner. These limited partnerships include Millyard Families |l Limited Partnership (Miltyard Il), located
on Market Street in Manchester, New Hampshire: Bicentennial Families Concord Limited Partnership
(Bicentenniai), located at Bicentennial Square in Concord, New Hampshire; Family Bridge Limited
Partnership (Family Bridge), located on Second Street in Manchester, New Hampshire; and Family
Willows Limited Partnership (Family Willows), located on South Beech Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire (collectively referred to as the Limited Partnerships).

In 2008, the Organization created a Community Development Housing Organization, Housing Benefits,
Inc. (Housing Benefits). Housing Benefits identifies and develops new housing units and refurbishes
existing units to meet the persistent need of combating homelessness. Completed housing units are
located on School & Third Streets, Lowell Street, Belmont Street, and Market Street (Millyard Families
1), in Manchester, New Hampshire as well as an additional housing unit located on Central Avenue in
Dover, New Hampshire. An additional housing unit became operational in 2014, located on Hayward
Street in Manchester, New Hampshire.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of Manchester Emergency Housing, Inc. (MEH), a
New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing immediate sheiter to homeless families in the
Manchester, New Hampshire area. MEH is the only family shelter in Manchester, New Hampshire.

The Organization also owns 100% of Family QutFITters, LLC (OutFITters), a limited liability
corporation. QutFiTters operates independent thrift stores in Concord and Manchester, New Hampshire
with the sole purpose of generating an alternate funding stream for the Organization.

The Limited Partnerships, Housing Benefits, MEH and OutFITters constitute the subsidiaries of the
Organization.

In 2012, the Organization became the sole member of The New Hampshire Coalition to End
Homelessness, a statewide entity, whose mission is to "eliminate the causes for homelessness through
research, education and advocacy”. The activity of this entity is not deemed material and has not been
included in the consolidated financial statements.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The Organization has several wholly-owned corporations which include Brick Mili House Families
i, Inc. (Brick Mil), Bicentennial Families Concord, Inc. (Bicentennial Families). Second Street
Family Mill, Inc. (Family Mill), and Big Shady Trze, Inc. (Big Shady Tree) (collectively referred to as
the General Partners), all of which are New Hampshire corporations. These wholly-owned
corporations represent the .01% sole general partners in the Limited Partnerships, whereby Brick
Mill is general partner of Millyard i, Bicentennial Families is general partner of Bicentennial, Family
Mill is general partner of Family Bridge and Big Shady Tree is general partner of Family Willows.

Since the General Partners have control in the Limited Partnerships, in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810-20-25, Consolidation.
each of the Limited Partnerships' financial statements are required to be consolidated with the
Organization's consolidated financial statements. The limited partners' ownership interest is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as noncontrolling interest.

The consolidated financial statements include the net assets of the Organization, the Limited
Partnerships, the General Partners, Housing Benefits, MEH and OutFiTters. All significant inter-
entity balances and transactions are eliminated in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Comparative Information

The consolidated financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative
information in total, but not by net asset classification. Such information does not include sufficient
detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(U.8. GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's
December 31, 2013 consoclidated financial statements, from which the summarized information
was derived.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits
could differ from those estimates.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on the
existence or absence of doncr imposed restrictions.

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may
or will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor imposed stipulations that they
be maintained permanently by the Organization. The donors of these assets permit the
Organization to use all or part of the income earned on related contributions for general or
specific purposes. The Organization had no permanently restricted net assets as of December
31, 2014 and 2013,

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purposes are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted support that
increases those net asset classes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets
released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.

The Organization reports contributions of land, buildings or equipment as unrestricted support,
unless a donor places explicit restriction on their use. Contributions of cash or other assets that
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as temporarily restricted support and
reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the assets are acquired and piaced in service.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or
less to be cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which,
at times, may exceed the federally insured limits. Management regularly monitors the financial
institutions, together with their respective cash balances, and attempts to maintain the potential risk
at a minimum. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
management believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted deposits are those deposits of cash and cash equivalents not generally available for
operating costs, but restricted to particular uses including operating and replacement reserves for
rental properties as well as certain other social services and programs.




FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation less accumulated depreciation. The Organization's capitalization policy requires
the capitalization of capital expenditures greater than $1,000, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 5 to 30 years. Assats not in service are
not depreciated.

Volunteer Services (unaudited)

A number of volunteers have donated their time to the Organization's various programs and
administrative services. The value of these services has not been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet criteria for recognition.
The estimated value of donated time for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, is
approximately $810,000 and $780,000, respectively.

Functional Expense Allocation

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

The Organization is a tax-exempt Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) public charity as described in Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is exempt from federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes
has been reflected in these financial statements.

The standards for accounting for uncertainty in income taxes require the Organization to report any
uncertain tax positions and to adjust its financial statements for the impact thereof. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Organization determined that it had no tax positions that did not
meet the more-likely-than-not threshold of being sustained by the applicable tax authority. The
Organization files an informational return in the United States. This return is generally subject to
examination by the federal government for up to three years.

No provision for taxes on income is made in the Limited Partnerships' financial statements since,
as a partnership, all taxable income and losses are allocated to the partners for inclusion in their
respective tax returns.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 2013 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year's presentation.

-10 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the foilowing:

2014 2013
Land $ 3,112,699 § 2,304,135
Land improvements 595,300 502,948
Buildings and improvements 27,743,643 26,035,016
Furniture and fixtures 496,456 503,087
Equipment 336,464 372,668
Vehicles 214,065 214 065

32,498,627 29,931,919

Less: accumulated depreciation ‘ 6,386.721 5,575,556
Property and equipment, net $ 26111906 $_ 24356363

fo o S e

During 2012, the Organization began the development of the Hayward Street Permanent
Supportive Housing Program (Hayward St. Program) through funding received by Housing Benefits
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, passed through the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire, known as Neighborhood Stabilization Program grants. The funds
were used to purchase a vacant lot in Manchester, New Hampshire and to construct a building
used to provide housing and supportive services to individuals and families who are homeless. The
facility contains four 2-bedroom apartments and two 1-bedroom apartments. [n addition, tenants
receive comprehensive supportive services designed to ensure long-term stability and wellness. At
December 31, 2013, the Organization had incurred costs of approximately $1.1 million presented
in the Organization's consolidated statement of financial position as development in process.

At December 31, 2014, the Organization had invested approximately $1.5 million in the Hayward
St. Program. On March 1, 2014, the Hayward St. Program was placed into service and the assets
were transferred from development in process and at December 31, 2014 are presented in the
Organization's consolidated statement of financial position in property and equipment, net.

in June 2014, land located at Spruce Street and Massabesic Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire, was donated to FIT from the City of Manchester. This land will be used to be
developed into the Hollow's Community Garden and Learning Center. The project is intended to
improve the quality of life of at-risk children and families by providing immediate hunger relief,
expanding food access and delivering hands-on educational experiences.

In September 2014, a three-family building and land located on Spruce Street in Manchester, New
Hampshire, was donated to FIT from the City of Manchester. The property was transferred from
FIT to Housing Benefits. Housing Benefits intends to rehabilitate the project into rental housing for
low-income households. All construction will incorporate energy efficiencies to the maximum extent
possible to reduce operating costs and ensure long-term affordability.

=11 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Development in Process

In 2014, the Organization began the pre-construction phase cn its Family Place Resource Center
and Shelter through funding received from New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA),
Community Development Finance Authority funds and donations. The facility will house a new and
expanded family shelter as well as a comprehensive resource center designed to meet the needs
of homeless families and children. The shelter will consist of 12 emergency housing units for
families in immediate need of shelter. The services include, but are not limited to, centralized
assessment and referral, hot meals, access to an onsite food pantry, onsite medical care and
therapeutic preschool programming for children. The project is expectad to cost approximately $1.8
million and is expected to be completed in 2015. At December 31, 2014, the Organization had
invested approximately $200,000 in the facility.

Line of Credit

The Organization has an unsecured line of credit agreement, renewed annually, with a financial
institution in the amount of $100,000. During the term of the agreement, the interest rate on any
outstanding principal balance shall be equal to the base rate, as defined by the financial institution,
with a floor of 4%. There was no outstanding balance or activity as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

nN
-
FN
N
O
—
193]

A mortgage loan payable to NHHFA in monthly payments of $680C,
including interest at 1% and an escrow of $3289. The loan is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The joan is due and payable in
full in January 2033. $ 67,613 3 71,011

A note payable to NHHFA. The note is non-interest bearing and is
collateralized by real estate located on Amherst Street,
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is due and payable
upon sale or refinancing of the property or in June 2042. 157,283 163,283

A mortgage loan payable to St. Mary's Bank in monthly payments
of $990, including interest at 6.25%. The loan is collateralized
by real estate on Spruce Street, Manchester, New Hampshire
and is due and payable in full in February 2019. 132,207 136,628

A vehicle loan on an activity bus payable to New Hampshire Health
and Education Facilities Authority in monthly payments of $525
at 1% annual interest rate. The loan is due and payable in
February 2017. 13,492 19.621

-12 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

A mortgage loan payable to TD Bank, N.A. in monthly payments of
$1,359. including interest at 7.1%. The loan is collateralized by
real estate at Beech Street, Manchester, New Hampshire. The
loan is due and payabie in full in November 2023. 100,050

A mortgage loan payable to RBS Citizens Bank in monthly
payments of 32,128, including interest at 4 93%. The loan is
collateralized by real estate on Douglas Street, Manchester,
New Hampshire. The loan is due and payable in full in April
2024, 250,676

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire, payable in annual installments of $1,977. The loan
was paid in October 2014, -

A mortgage note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA, collateralized
by real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of
$1.095 include interest at 4.75% per annum until the principal
and interest are fully paid with the final instaliment due and
payable on May 1, 2034, 164,904

A non-interest bearing note payabie by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 50% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 27, 2033. This is non-recourse. 102,647

A non-interest bearing note payable by Bicentennial to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable on May 27, 2033. This note is non-recourse
and is subordinate to the $102,647 note payable. 337,720

A non-interest bearing note payable by Bicentenniat to Merrimack
County, collateralized by real estate and various financing
instruments. The note is due and payable in full May 27, 2033. 260,000

A non-interest bearing note payable by Millyard Il to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and various financing instruments.
Annual payments of 25% of surplus cash are due. The note is
due and payable upon sale or refinancing of the property or in
May 2031. This loan is non-recourse. 461,696

A mortgage note payable by Millyard !l to NHHFA, collateralized by
real estate and personal property. Monthly payments of $1,729
include principal and interest at 3.5% per annum. The final
instaliment is due and payable on April 1, 2032. 268,758

108,813

258.443

1.977

170,083

102,647

337,720

260,000

462,309

279,885
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

A non-interest bearing note payable by Millyard Il to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire, collateralized by real estate and
various financing instruments. A payment of interest shalil be
made annually no later than August 1 each year based on
42.5% of the net cash flow. In any year where the Debt
Coverage Ratio exceeds 1.15 to 1, principal payments shall be
made no {ater than August 1 in an amount that will resultin a
1.15 to 1 Debt Coverage Ratio. All unpaid amounts are due and
payable in full on August 1, 2031. This note is non-recourse. 226,725

A non-interest bearing note payable by Millyard If to the New
Hampshire Community Loan Fund, Inc. (NHCLF), collateralized
by real estate. All unpaid amounts are due and payable in full
on December 31, 2031. This note is non-recourse. 250,000

A mortgage note payable by Millyard Families | to the City of
Manchester Community Improvement Program, collateralized
by real estate. The note is non-interest bearing and is due and
payable in January 2027. 230,000

A second mortgage note payable by Millyard Families | to the
NHCLF, collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of
$1,121 include principal and interest at 2% per annum. The
final instaliment is due and payable on June 15, 2022. 93,604

A mortgage note payable by Family Bridge to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and perscnal property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on
August 30, 2034, 850,000

A promissory note payable by Family Bridge to TD Bank, N.A.,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $3,953
include principal and interest at 7.71%. The note is payable in
full in October 27, 2023 and is guaranteed by FIT and Family
Mill. 483,093

A promissaory note payable by Family Bridge to the City of
Manchester, New Hampshire. The note is non-interest bearing
with annual payments of 50% of net cash flow payable by
October 1. The outstanding principal is due by October 1, 2034,
The note is collateralized by real estate and is non-recourse. 600,000

227,521

250,000

230.000

105,058

850,000

492,270

600,000
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014

{With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

A mortgage note payable by Family Willows to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personai property. The note
bears no interest and is to be repaid from 50% of available
surplus cash annually with all remaining principal due on July 9,
2037.

A note payable by Family Wiliows to the City of Manchester, New
Hampshire. The note is non-interest bearing and has an annual
payment of $9,091 payable on October 1. All outstanding
principal is due by October 2029 The note is collateralized by
real estate and is non-recourse.

A note payable by Family Willows to RBS Citizens Bank,
collateralized by real estate. Monthly payments of $1,882
include principal and interest at 3.25%. based on the prime rate
capped at 6%. The note is payable in full on October 14, 2033
and is guaranteed by FIT and Big Shady Tree.

A mortgage note payable by School & Third Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. Monthly
payments of $2,774 include principal and interest at 8% per
annum. The note is due April 1, 2021,

A second mortgage note payable by School & Third Street to
NHCLF, collateralized by real estate and personal property.
The note bears no interest and monthly payments of $2,774 will
commence on April 15, 2021 and continue until maturity in
September 15, 2039.

A mortgage note payable by Belmont Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in fuil by
December 2040.

A privately-financed mortgage note coliateralized by property
located at South Main Street in Concord, New Hampshire.
Monthly payments of $3,158 include principail and interest at
6.25% per annum. The note will be paid in full in September
2031.

A mortgage note payable from Lowell Street to NHHFA,
collateralized by real estate and personal property. The non-
interest bearing note requires annual payments in amounts
equal to 50% of surplus cash. The note is payable in full in
August 2040,

598,957

127,272

312,442

163,281

617,613

419,370

392,864

44,312

598,957

136.363

324,506

182,653

617,613

433,000

405,761

59,157
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

A second. non-interest bearing. mortgage note payable from Lowell
Street to the City of Manchester, New Hampshire, collateralized
by real estate. Annual payments equal to the greater of 25% of
new cash flow or 34,000 commenced in October 2012 and will
continue until the maturity date in June 2041, 180,864 188,287

A non-interest promissory note payable from Lowell Street to
NHHFA collateralized by a mortgage and security agreement
on real estate. The note will be forgiven 1/15th annually over
the low-income housing tax credit compliance period. During
2014 and 2013, $131,267 was recognized as other income in
the consolidated statement of activities. 1,509,565 1,640,832

A mortgage note payable from Dover to NHHFA, collateralized by
the real estate and personal property. The non-interest bearing
note requires annual payments in amounts eqgual to 50% of
surplus cash. The note is payable in full by June 2028. 221,428 225,000

A non-interest mortgage note payable to the City of Manchester
Community improvement Program, collateralized by real estate
focated at 393-395 Spruce St. The note has a borrowing limit of
$500,000. As costs are incurred Housing Benefits will be
reimbursed by the City of Manchester. Annual payments of the
greater of 25% of net cash flow or $5,000 are due by October 1
commencing October 1, 2015. The note is due in full by
October 1, 2045. 63,283 -

A mortgage note payable to TD Bank, N.A., collateralized by real
estate located at 167 Lake Avenue and personal property
located at 161 South Beech Street, Unit 2. Monthly payments of
$1,921 include principal and interest at 3.41%. The note is due

in full by April 2019. 424 556 -
10,126,275 9,939,403
Less current portion 187,323 258.051

9938952 $_9681352

$ﬁ— et

Principal maturities of the above notes over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2015 $ 187,323
2016 141,655
2017 143,682
2018 149,749
2019 645,646
Thereafter 8,858,220

$10.126.275

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense.

-16 -



6.

FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are restricted for the following purposes:

2014 2013

The Family Place - services $ 53,672 & 50,8883
The Family Place - development 241,000 177,000
Research and training 26,333 19,551
Scholarships and tutoring 4,375 6,879
VISTA program 38,511 54,4384
Housing programs 4,750 2,700
Direct care for clients 79,851 35439
Community Gardens 71,222 -

Grant receivable - time restricted - 25.000

$ 519.714 § 371,941

Commitments

Under the terms of the Limited Partnerships' Regulatory Agreements with NHHFA, each Limited
Partnership is required to make deposits to various escrow accounts to fund expected future costs.

Each Limited Partnership has entered into a Land Use Restriction Agreement with NHHFA, as a
condition of the allocation of low-income housing tax credits by NHHFA. Pursuant to the covenant,
the Limited Partnerships are required to remain in compliance with Code Section 42 for the
compliance period and an extended use period, unless terminated sooner.

Retirement Plan

The Organization has a tax deferred retirement plan which is available to all employees working
greater than 25 hours a week. All employees are eligible to participate and are fully vested with the
first contribution. The Organization matches contributions at 100% up to 3% of compensation. The
Organization contributed $31,138 and $32,692 during the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Housing Action New Hampshire

In 2011, the Organization entered into a Fiscal Sponsorship Agreement with Housing Action New
Hampshire (HANH), an unincorporated association. Authority to manage the programmatic
activities of HANH is vested solely in HANH. The Organization maintains the books and financial
records for HANH in accordance with U.S. GAAP. HANH funds are presented in the Organization's
consolidated statement of financial position as funds held as fiscal agent.

17 -



FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2014
(With Comparative Totals for December 31, 2013)

10. Noncontrolling Interest

Noncontrolling interest, as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position, represents
investments by limited partners in the Limited Partnerships as follows as of December 31:

Limited Partner Property 2014 2013
Community Capital 2000 Millyard |l $ 1,000,929 $ 1.080,482
New Hampshire Housirg

Equity Fund, Inc. Bicentennial 352,882 382,492
JP Morgan Chase Bicentennial 352,985 382,589
BCCC, inc. Family Bridge 10 10
Boston Capital Corporate Family Bridge 1,660,467 1.853,769
BCCC, Inc. Family Willows 10 10
Boston Capital Midway Family Willows 2,323,771 2.415.560

$_ 5691054 $__6114912

11. Restatement of January 1, 2013 Net Assets

The beginning 2013 unrestricted net assets has been restated to properly reflect property
contributed to Housing Benefits Dover Housing Project in a prior year. The effect of the
restatement is as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - controlling interest, January 1, 2013 (as
previously stated) 3 9,551,445
Amount of restatement to include property contributed in 2012

280,700

Unrestricted net assets - controlling interest, January 1, 2013
(restated) 9,832,145
Unrestricted net assets - noncontrolling interest, January 1, 2013 6,652,776
Temporarily restricted net assets, January 1, 2013 217.807
Total net assets, January 1, 2013 (restated) 3 16,702,728

The restatement had no effect on the previously reported change in net assets for 2013.

12. Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, the Organization has considered transactions or events occurring through March 30, 2015,
which was the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.
Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated
financial statements

-18 -
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FAMILIES IN TRANSITION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidating Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Families In Manchester
Limited Housing Family Emergency Unrestricted Temporarily
Partnerships Benefils QuiFiTlers Housing Eliminations Total Restricted Total
Revenue and support
Federal. state and other grant
support ) 2169710 64807 % 506,734 % - g 159,186 $ (314.897) % 2585540 S 283408 % 2.868.948
Rental income. net of vacancies 295911 965,137 490.308 - 2,260 (78,875) 1.674.741 - 1,674,741
Thrift store sates - - - 724911 - . 724 911 - 724911
Public support ) 113.645 - - 3,021 - - 116,666 - 116.666
Tax credit revenue 129.067 - - - - - 129.067 - 129.067
Special events 134,354 - - 600 - - 134,954 - 134,954
Property management fees 570.336 - - B - (570.336) - - -
Developer fees 72.000 - - - - - 72.000 72.000
VISTA program revenue 03.474 - - - - - 93.474 . 93,474
Unrealized gains on invesiments 1.064 - - - - - 1.064 - 1.064
l.oss on disposal of assets - (3.653) - - - - (3.653) - (3.653)
interest income 965,758 438 110 - - (67.770) 29,536 - 29,536
In-kind donations 24.040 - 1.850 - - - 25.890 - 25890
Other income 367.656 22.249 157 737 4,295 1.420 (6.000) 547 357 - 547,357
Met assefs released from restrictions
135,635 N - - - - 135,635 {135.635) -
Total revenue and support
4,203,650 1,048,978 1,156,739 732,827 162,866 (1,037,878) 6,267,182 147,773 6,414,955
Expenses
Mrogram aclivities 3.261.921 1,472,843 1,060.320 699.216 165,765 (1.185.272) 5,474,793 - 5,474,793
Fundraising 432,998 - - - - - 432,998 - 432,908
Management and general 411,429 - - . - (122.806) 288623 - 288,623
Total expenses 4,106,348 1,472,843 1,060,320 699,216 165,765 (1,308.078) 6,196,414 - 6,196,414
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
and support over expenses 97.302 (423.865) 96.419 33.611 (2.899) 270.200 70.768 147.773 218.541
Contribution for long term purposes G87.7G0 - 216,200 - - (216.200) 687,760 - 687,760
Change in net assets 3 785062 § (423,865 § 312,619 $ 33611 § (2899 § 54000 % 758528 $ 147,773 § 906,301

-20-
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% paid

Name Title Salary from Amt pd
this
contract contract
Maureen Beauregard President 137,977 0%
Stephaniz Savard Vice President 85,654 0%




Families in Transition Famlhfis
Board of Directors in TI'ElI’lSitiOI’l
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FANMULIES IN TRAMSITION
Board of Directors

Dick Anagnost, Chairperson
President, Anagnost Companies
Board member since 2007

Charla Bizios Stevens, Vice Chairperson
Director, Litigation Department and Chair of Employment Law Practice Group
Mclane, Graf, Raulerson & Middieton, P.A.
Board member since 2013

Robert Bartley, Treasurer
Bartley Financial Advisor
Board member since 2015

Colleen Cone, Secretary
VP, Talent & Culture, DYN
Board member since 2014

Susan Grodman,
Director of Enrollment & Global Program, The Derryfield School
Board member since 2007

Trevor Arp,
VP of Product Management, Comcast
Board member since 2008

Rev. Gayle Murphy
Reverend, Northwood Congregational Church, UCC
Board member since 2008

Eric Demaree

President, Carpet One Floor & Home Division, CCA Global Partners
Board member since 2012

Rev. I'[:2016 RS






Maureen Ann Beauregard
17 Overlook Road
Northwood, NH 03261
(603) 942-5647
pups@metrocast.net

Professional Experience

November 1991 to Present: Families in Transition, 122 Market Street, Manchester, NH
03101,

1995-Present. President, Families in Transition. Developed a Board of Directors and
established Families in Transition as a private nonprofit agency in 1995. Respounsible tor
grant wriling, fundraising, facility development, oversight of agency personnel, program
development, day to day operations, reporting to state and federal agencies and public
relations.

* 200310 Present: Development and Implementation of 33 units permanent affordable
housing in Manchester,

* 2001-2003: Development of Familics in Transitior — Concord, 16 units of affordable
housing with 6 designated for homeless women with a disability and 10 designated
for transitional housing for homeless women and thetr children.

s 2001 to Present: Development of Families in Transition's social entrepreneurship,
Family OutFITters thrid store and Employment Training Program.

s 19938 -2001: Development of Millyvard IT Transitional Housing Program with 19
apartments and | interim umit for 3 families,

» 1995 - 1997 Development of Millyard T Transitional Housing Program with 12
apartments for homeless women with children.

¢ 1994 - 1995: Development of steering committee to form the Board of Directors for
Families in Transition and Families in Transition becomes and independent 50! ©

(3)

1991- 1994 New Hampshire Community Loan Fund. Program Director. Designed and
implemented transitional housing programs for the homeless women with and without
clildren.
¢ 1993 ~ 1994: Development and implementation of Community Program providing
supportive services to 14 homeless women and their children and assisting them in
attaining and maintaining housing.
¢ 1992 -1993: Development and implementation of Ambherst Street Transitional
Housing Program for 9 homeless single women.
e (991 -1992: Development and implementation of Spruce Street Transitional
Housing Program for 3 homeless women and their children.

November 1989-March 1991: Child Protective Service Worker 1T for the Division for Children
and Youth Services, 30 Maplewood Avenue, Portsmouth, NH. Advocated for abused and
neglected children in court, established support network (fostercare, visitation, and
counseling) to help in the abuse/neglect recovery process.

November 1988-November 1989; Substance Abuse Counselor for Team Coordinating
Agency, Phoenix Fast, [Taverhill, MA. Counseled clients, aided and found resources



(AA/NA meetings, employment, education, and counseling) for residents 11 halfway
touse for aleoholic/addicts, age 16-25. Conducted weekly support group,
Education

Bachelor of Science degree from the University of New Hampshire, College of Life
Science and Agriculture. Area of study: Family Studies,

Professioual Affiliations and Honors

1998 to 2004 — Northern New England Housing Investment Fund. Member of Board of
Directors.

1998 to 2004 - Northern New England Equity Fund. Member Board of Directors and
Investment Committee

2004: New Hampshire Business Review, Business Excellence Awards 2004, Maureen
Beauregard for Excellence in Non-Profit

2004: The Walter J. Dunfey Awards for Excellence in Management awarded o Families in
Transition

2003: YWCA Susan B. Anthony Award, Woman of the Year

2003: New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority Annual Conference: Maureen Beauregard
and Families in Transition recognized as Best Practice for Development of Affordable
Housing in New Hampshire.

2002: Great Bay Foundation: $150,000 grant award for the development and implementation
of social entrepreneurship, Family OQutFITters.

2002: Citizens Bank and WMUR Channe! - 9, 2003 Community Champions Award for
Homelessness for New Hampshire

2001: Manchester Continuum of Care Narrative submission to the U.S. Dept. of Housing &
Urban Development, SuperNOFA: | of top 10 narratives in the country.

2003 to Present: YMCA Diversity Committee

2003 to Present: Intown Manchester, Economic Development Committee, Trustee

2003: The Sharing Foundation, Caring for Cambodia’s Children Parent Advisory Council
2003 to Present: New Hampshire Interagency Council on Homelessness, member appointed
by Governor Benson

2002 to Present: Policy Academy for the Chronically Homeless, member

2002 to Present: Great Bay Foundation, Work Group consisting of 5 leading initiatives,
member

2001 to Present: Manchester Task Force on Housing, member appointed by Mayor

1999 to Present: Northern New England Housing [nvestment Fund, Investment Committee,
Trustee

1998 to Present: Manchester Continuum of Care, Chairperson in 1998, 2003, founding
member



Stephanie Allain Savard, LICSW
| Londonderry Lane, Derry, N.H. 03038
(603) 537-9713

Licensure and Education:

New Hampshire Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, #941, April,
2000,
Masters in Social Work, Boston University, 1996,
Bachelor of Arts — Honors in Psychology, Keene State College, 1992.
Associate of Science in Chemical Dependency, Keene State College, 1992.
Boston University Workshop-Based Trauma Certificate, 2006.
Low Income Housing Tax Credit Certified Credit Compliance Professional
(C3P), 2000.

Professional Experience:
Vice-President, Families in Transition, Manchester, NI, 197 — Present.

Oversight of clinical department and all supportive services programming
within agency, including case managemment, therapeutic services,
employment & training services, youth programming and specialized
programming. Oversee and manage treatment and supportive services for a
program capacity of 150+ homeless families and individuals to ensure that
consistent and quality clinical services are provided. Oversight of 135+ units
of affordable housing to ensure quality and safe housing for all tenants.
Provide administrative and clinical supervision to all licensed clinicians,
masters and bachelor level clinician & case managers. Provide oversight to
the Property Administration Department, including management of all
funding requirements for each property, including Low Income Housing Tax
Credits, HOME, Housing and Urban Development, CDBG, etc.

Assumes responsibilities and decision-making for agency in the absence of
the President. Assist President on personnel issues and in oversight of
agency and strategic planning.

Provide therapeutic services to participants of program, including
participation in participant team meetings. Co-facilitate support groups on
various issues, including sclf-esteem, co-dependency, Relational/Cultural
Theory, trauma and relationships.

Families in Transition Board of Directors Programs and Supportive Services
Committee Member and assist in Board of Director meetings.

Member of the Manchester Continuum of Care, 10/00 - Present; Community
Awareness Committee Chair 2003/2004; 2006 - Present.

Counselor/Family Service Worker, NFI Midway Residential Shelter, Manchester,
NH, 1993 - 1996.

Supervised 15 adolescent males utilizing behavior management and normative
culture techniques.



e Supervised all shifts and summer activity program; Conducted family
assessments and counseling.

MSW Clinical Intern, CASPAR Emergency Service Center, Cambridge, MA,
1993-1996.
* Provided assessments, individual and group therapy to homeless substance
abusers in early recovery.
e Developed a resource manual ot services for client referral and assisted in
creating a program brochure.

MSW Clinical Caseworker [ntern, WorkSource of Work, Inc., Quincy, MA, 1994-
1995.

e Provided case management, counseling, and crisis intervention to consumers
with psychiatric disabilities in a vocational rehabilitation workshop.
Developed and co-facilitated support groups.

e Developed and facilitated a pre-employment program for consumers
transitioning into community work.

VISTA Volunteer, Center for Human Services, Seattle, WA, 1992-1993.

e Developed, recruited, and supervised a volunteer program for multiple
programs and departments.

e Diversity Committee Member; Assisted in agency fundraising and grant
writing; designed and marketed public relation materials; assisted in
coordinating Board of Directors and chairing Board committecs.

Professional Affiliations and Volunteer Experience:
o [azarus House Transitional Housing Advisory Council, Lawrence, MA, 2004
- Present.
o Board of Directors of the NH Coalition to End Homelessness, 12/00 - 2002,

Awards & Professional Memberships:
e National Association of Social Workers, Member 1996-Present; NH Chapter
Board of Directors, Vice-President 2006 — Present.
o Union Leader and Business Industry Association “40 Under 40” Leaders of
New Hampshire, 2004
e NH Homeless Service Providers Award, Office of Homeless and Housing
Services, 2003,



